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BOARD’S REPORT
To

The Members,

Your Board of Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 17" Annual Report of your Company and is
prepared based on the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31*
March, 2023.
1. STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS
(a) FINANCIAL SUMMARY:

The following table depicts the financial results of your Company for the year ending 31st March 2023:

For the year ended | For the year ended
S. 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
No. | Particulars (Rs. in lac) (Rs. in lac)

INCOME

Revenue from operations 1,565.29 1,118.39
Other income 90.38 131.97
Finance income 1,870.03 2,471.54
TOTAL 3,525.70 3,721.90

EXPENDITURE

Employee Benefits Expense 157.16 155.05
Finance Costs 708.61 913.53
Depreciation & Amortization expense 0.38 0.37
Other Expenses 1,730.58 2,005.40
TOTAL 2,596.73 3,074.35

Profit/(Loss) before tax from continuing operations

928.17 647.55

- Current Tax

- ‘ _ 146.46 127.21
MAT Credit Entitlement (152.31) (113.14)

Profit / (Loss) for the year
Interim Dividend

934.82
648.68

633.48
858.55

Other comprehensive income (16.50) 0.46
7) | Total comprehensive income for the year 269.64 (224.60)
Earnings per Share — Basic & Diluted 0.85 (0.71)

(b) O&M WORKS AT THE PROJECT SITE:

Your Company is regularly doing the Operations &
stipulations under the Concession Agreement.

Maintenance of the Project Highway as per the
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{c) ANNUITY RECEIPTS FROM NHAI:

During the Financial Year 2022-23, your Company has received 27" Annuity and 26™ Annuity from NHAL
without any delay as per the following table:

S. Particulars of Annuity 26" Annuity 27" Annuity
No. Due on 27.09.2022 Due on 27.03.2023
Gross Annuity Amount 23,95,00,000 23,95,00,000
Add: GST @18% - 4,31,10,000
Less: TDS recovered 47,90,000 47,90,000
Less: GST TDS @ 2% - 47,90,000
Net Annuity Receivable 23,47,10,000 27,30,30,000
Annuity Received on 27.09.2022 23,47,10,000 =
Annuity Received on 28.03.2023 22,99,20,000

| o | £ W M=

Annuity Received on 19.04.2023 4,31,10,000

The Annuity amounts are being utilized to meet O&M Expenses, debt-servicing obligations, i.e. payment of Interest
on Term Loans and repayment of Principal Installments, Major Maintenance Expenses, administrative expenses
and other project related costs.

(d) TERM LOANS AND INTEREST THEREON:

During the financial year under review, your Company was regular in servicing interest on Term Loans,
due to regular receipt of Annuity from NHAI,

The following table shows the Principal Term Loan outstanding, as on 31* March 2023:
Rs. in Crores
S. No. | Name of the Lender | Sanctioned | Disbursed | Repayment | Outstanding

1 IDFC First Bank - Sr

s 32.57 32.08 25.93 6.15
€ | TR 19.00 18.71 13.21 5.50

Canara Bank

8.33
Punjab National Bank

8.94
5 Punjab National Bank
(e-United Bank of India) 50.00 48.76 39.81 B.95

ITFCL 51.00 50.23
Total 252.57 246.67

50.00
50.00

48.14
48.75

39.81
39.81

40.61
199.18

9.62
47.49
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2. FUTURE OUTLOOK
# Receipt of Annuity:

In view of the Supplementary Concession Agreement and also in view of the receipt of Letter of Credit
from NHAI, receipt of future Annuities is assured and thereby, your Company is confident of timely debt-
servicing to the lenders.

Repayment of Principal Loan instalilments as per the schedule:

As in the past, your Company will be remitting the principal installments of repayment of Term Loans in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the reschedulement of Term Loans approved by the lenders.

Escalation claims / Change of Scope claims/ Overlay Matter (Major Maintenance):

The Company and NHAI have executed the Settlement Agreement on 25th July 2022. The terms of the
agreement is briefly mentioned below:

1. The amount of final settlement has been arrived at NIL by mutual agreement between the parties.

2. NHAI will not raise any claims or damages against the Concessionaire of whatsoever nature under any
clause of Concession Agreement and otherwise

3. The Concessionaire will not ralse any claims or damages against the Authority of whatsoever nature
under clause of the Concession Agreement and otherwise until the date of this agreement

4, Second renewal work (MM) is due five years from first renewal i.e. in 2022 and third renewal is due five
years thereafter i.e. in 2027

Upon execution of the above agreement, all the Arbitration matters are closed.

3. BOARD MEETINGS

During the year ended 31% March, 2023, Five Board Meetings were convened and held. The intervening gap
between the two consecutive Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

The dates on which the Board meetings were held are 20" May, 2022, 08" August, 2022, 26" October, 2022, 06™
February, 2023 and 27*" February, 2023.

Attendance of Directors at the meetings:
The details of the attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings held during the year ended 31% March, 2023.

Name of the Director Number of Board Meetings
Entitled to attend |
Held the meeting Attended
J. Brij Mohan Reddy 5 5 5
Narayanan Gopalakrishnan 5 4 4
Bajrang Lal Gupta 5 5 5
Krishnamurthy Chaturvedi 5 3 5
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Audit Committee Meetings

During the year ended 31% March, 2023, Four Audit Committee Meetings were convened and held. The dates on
which the Audit Committee meetings were held are 20™ May, 2022, 08™ August, 2022, 26" October, 2022 and 06"
February, 2023.

Attendance of Members at the meetings:

The details of the attendance of the Directors at the Audit Committee meetings held during the year ended 31%
March, 2023.

Name of the Number of Audit Committee
Director Meetings
Held Attended
J. Brij Mohan Reddy 4 4
Ch. Krishnamurthy 4 4
Bajrang Lal Gupta

Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings

During the year ended 31* March, 2023, One Nomination & Remuneration Committee Meeting was convened
and held. The Nomination & Remuneration Committee meeting was held on 06" February, 2023.

Attendance of Directors at the meetings:
The details of the attendance of the Directors at the Nomination & Remuneration Committee meetings held
during the year ended 31% March, 2023.

Name of the Number of Nomination and
Director Remuneration Committee
Meetings
Held Attended
J. Brij Mohan Reddy 1 1
Ch. Krishnamurthy
Bajrang Lal Gupta

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee Meetings

During the year ended 31% March, 2023, One Corporate Social Responsibility Committee Meeting was convened
and held. The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee Meeting was held on 27" January, 2023.

Attendance of Directors at the meetings:

The details of the attendance of the Directors at the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee Meetings held
during the year ended 31 March, 2023,
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Name of the Number of Corporate
Director Social Responsibility Committee
Meetings
Held Attended
J Brij Mohan Reddy 1
Ch. Krishnamurthy
Bajrang Lal Gupta

Separate meeting of In nd Directo

One separate meeting of independent directors was held during the year without the presence of non-independent
directors and members of the management to assess the quality, quantity and timelines of flow of information

between the Company Management and the Board. The meeting of independent directors was held on 06"
February, 2023.

4.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON BOARD AND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS.

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India on
Board meetings and Annual General Meetings.

5. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them,
your Directors make the following statements In terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013:

a. that in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31% March 2023, the applicable

accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if
any;

that such accounting policies were selected and applied them consistently and judgement and estimates
have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company as at 31% March 2023 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;

that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

. that the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

that proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate and were
operating effectively.

that directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and such system were adequate and operating effectively.
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6. STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD TO INTEGRITY, EXPERTISE
AND EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING THE PROFICIENCY) OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
APPOINTED DURING THE YEAR.

The Board of Directors have evaluated the Independent Directors appointed during the year 2022-23 and opined

that the integrity, expertise and experience (including proficiency) of the Independent Directors is satisfactory.

7. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
The following are the changes in the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel during the period:

a. Mr. Narayanan Gopalakrishnan has resigned from the directorship in the Company w.e.f 22nd February,
2023,

b. Mr. Azad Singh Yadav was appointed as Company Secretary of the Company with effect from 06th
February 2023.

8. STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All The Independent Directors have submitted the declaration of independence , as required under to section

149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 stating that they meet the criteria of independence as provided in sub-
section(6).

9. RE-APPOINTMENTS

Mr. J. Brij Mohan Reddy, Director of the Company is retiring by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

10. POLICY FOR SELECTION AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND THEIR REMUNERATION

The Nomination and Remuneration (N&R) Committee discusses and decides the appointment of the Board of
Directors and their remuneration including the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes,
independence of a director and other matters, as required under sub-section (3) of Section 178 of the Act.

The Committee headed by Mr. Krishnamurthy Chaturvedi as a Chairman and Mr. B.L. Gupta and Mr. J. Brij Mohan
Reddy, members of the Committee.

The Committee meetings are held as and when required by the Company.

11. AUDITORS REPORT
There are no qualifications in the Auditors Report. No fraud has been reported by the Auditors

12. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

13. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The particular of contracts or arrangements with the related parties referred to in Section 188 of the Act are given
in the Form AOC-2, and is annexed as Annexure-1. However there were no Related Party Transactions made by
the Company during the year that would have required Shareholders’ approval under the provisions of the Act.
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14. TRANSFER OF AMOUNT TO RESERVES

The Company does not propose to transfer any amount to any reserves for the Financial Year ended 31st March,
2023,

15. DIVIDEND

During the period under review The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 26" October,
2022 has declared an Interim Dividend on 3,17,98,006 Equity Shares of the Company i.e Rs. 1.27/- per Equity
Share and record date being 04™ November, 2022.

Further, The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 06™ February, 2023 has declared an
Interim Dividend of 7.75% on 3,17,98,006 Equity Shares of the Company i.e Rs. 0.77/- per Equity Share and
record date being 14" February, 2023.

16. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which have

occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the
date of the report.

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.

17. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO

Information and details relating to Conservation of Energy, and Technology absorption do not apply to the

company and there are no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo during the period as required under Section
134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is Nil.

18.STATEMENT INDICATING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF A RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICY

The source of income for your Company is Annuity from NHAI as per the Concession Agreement and income
earned out of temporary deployment of funds. Annuity from NHAI accounts for almost 98% of the total incomé of
your Company. Since the Annuities are payable by NHAI in accordance with the Concession Agreement, your
Company does not foresee any significant risk in receipt of these Annuities, in view of the fact that a revolving
Letter of Credit has been obtained from NHAI, securing all future annuities. Your Company is ensuring that the
conditions of the Concession Agreement are complied with, to ensure timely receipt of Annuities.

Your Company has also ensured that proper systems are planned, implemented and effectively monitored to
ensure that all accounting and financial transactions are properly authorized and recorded, so as to ensure that the
financial statements are free from material misstatements.

19. POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES TAKEN DURING THE YEAR
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The Company has constituted Corporate Soclal Responsibility Committee to comply the provisions of the Section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Corporate Social Responsibility committee was constituted as follows:

i) Mr. 1. Brij Mohan Reddy Chairman
(i) Mr. Krishnamurthy Chaturvedi  Member
(iii)Mr. Bajrang Lal Gupta Member

During the financial year ended 31% March, 2023, one meeting of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
was held on 27" February, 2023.

The Corporate Social responsibility policy of the Company is annexed herewith as Annexure-2.

20. BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out an annual performance
evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually, independent directors by the entire Board of Directors
and working of its Audit committee, and Nomination and Remuneration Committees.

21. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India on
Board Meetings and General Meetings.

22, SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the Financial Year ending on 31st March 2023, your Company had no subsidiaries and associate companies.
No company is ceased to be as Company's subsidiary, joint venture or associate company.

23. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As the Company does not have any subsidiary or associate companies, the Consolidated Financial Statements are
not applicable.

24.STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF
SUBSIDIARIES/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES/ JOINT VENTURES

As the Company does not have any subsidiary or associate companies, so the statement containing salient
features of the financial statement of subsidiaries / associate companies / joint ventures is not applicable.

25. DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public in terms of Section 73 of the Act, and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014,
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26. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact the going concern
status of the Company and its future operations during the period.

27. STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. N. C. Mittal & Co, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 000237N), were appointed as statutory

auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of the 13th AGM until the conclusion of the 18th AGM
to be held in the year 2024.

28. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

There are no employees who come under the purview of Section 197 of the Act read with Rule, 5 of The
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

29, VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has a vigil mechanism to deal with instance of fraud and mismanagement, if any. The details of the

Vigil Mechanism Policy are available for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company during
business hours on working days of the Company.

30. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Your Company has ensured that appropriate policies and procedures are adopted for ensuring orderly and efficient
conduct of the business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, prevention and

detection of fraud and error, the accuracy and completeness of accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information.

31. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

As per Regulation 24A of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 ["SEBI Regulations”] every listed entity and its material unlisted subsidiaries incorporated in
India shall undertake secretarial audit and shall annex with its annual report, a secretarial audit report, given by a

company secretary in practice, in Form No. MR - 3 as specified under Section 204 of the Act and the rules made
thereunder with effect from the year ended 31st March, 2023.

Your Company being a material unlisted subsidiary of the listed Company i.e., Gayatri Highways Limited, hence
the Company has appointed Mr. C.N. Kranthi Kumar, Practicing Company Secretary in Practice, a Peer Reviewed
Unit [No. 612 / 2019), as a Secretarial Auditor for the Financial Year 2022-23 to comply with the SEBI Regulations
, 2015,

32. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The Secretarial Audit Report issued by the Secretarial Auditor, does not have any observations / qualification /
reservation /[ adverse remarks / matters of non-compliances. The report is annexed as Annexure-3.
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33. DETAILS OF FRAUDS

During the year, there were no instances of frauds reported by auditors under Section 143(12) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

34. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The Company is maintaining the Cost Records as specified by the Central Government under Section 148 of the
Act.

35. HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Your Company lays emphasis on competence and commitment of its human capital recognizing its pivotal role for
organizational growth.

During the year, the Company maintained a record of peaceful employee relations. Your Directors wish to place on
record their appreciation for the commitment shown by the employees throughout the year.

36. DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

During the year under review there were no applications made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code. 2016.

37.THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF
ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF.

As Company has not done any one time Settlement during the year under review hence no disclosure is required

38.INTERNAL COMPLAINTS COMMITTEE

The Company is not required to comply with the provisions of constitution of the Internal Complaints Committee
under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

39. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors express their appreciation to the Company’'s Regulatory, Professional & Local Bodies, Bankers,
Financial Institutions Auditors, Customers, Consultants , Service Providers for their continues co-operation and
support, and the Members for their confidence in the management of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

et o B
Place: Hyderabad jrang Lal Gupta Krishnamurthy Chaturvedi
Date: 5" September 2023 Director Director

DIN: 07175777 DIN: 08661228
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ANNEXURE-1

Form No. ADC-2
(Pursuant to clause () of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including

certain arm'’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm'’s length basis

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of
relationship

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

{c) Duration of the contracts /
arrangements/transactions

(d) salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions

(f) date(s) of approval by the Board

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any:

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in
general meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188
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2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm'’s length basis

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship During the year, no material contracts
or arrangements have been entered
into by the Company.

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transactions including the value, if any:

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any:

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

s e o
Place: Hyderabad rang Lal Gupta Krishnamurthy Chaturvedi
Date: 5" September 2023 i Director

DIN: 07175777 DIN: 08661228
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ANNEXURE-2

Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy and Activities
as per Rule 8 of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

Purpose

The objective of this Policy is to promote inclusive growth and equitable development of identified areas
by contributing back to the society.

Funetions

The main functions of the CSR. Committee shall be as under:

Identify the areas for carrying out the activities and formulate proposal / plan to undertake same
To identify the projects, programs for specific area of activity, finalize the budget and earmark the
expenditure for each activity and recommend the same to the Board every year

To determine the location where the CSR activities shall be undertaken

To monitor the progress of the projects / activities from time to time

To nominate employees who will be responsible for implementation, execution and monitoring of
the CSR activities

To hire services of external service providers, Non-Governmental Organizations, volunteers,
professionals, consultants, specialized agencies etc., if required, to undertake the said activities

Such other functions as may be delegated by the Board.

Areas / Activities

CSR activities will be undertaken in such geographical limits in which the contributing companies have
ongoing interest in either construction, maintenance or toll operations, The respective CSR Committee
may approve the locations and decide on priority for undertaking the selected activities from amongst the

areas of operations of the respective company, The guiding factor will be the large presence of deprived

sections the society in the proximity of our projects. The Company will select all or any of the following

CSR activities for implementation in the area of its operations, namely:

# eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting preventive health care and sanitation

and making available safe drinking water:
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promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills
especially among children, women, elderly, and the differently abled and Ilivelihood
enhancement projects;

promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting up homes and hostels for women and
orphans; setting up old age homes, day care centre’s and such other facilities for senior citizens
and measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backward groups;
ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna, animal
welfare, agro forestry, conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of soil, air and
water;

protection of national heritage, alt and culture including restoration of buildings and sites of
historical importance and works of art; setting up public libraries; promotion and development
of traditional arts and handicrafis:

measures for the benefit of Central armed forces and Central Para military forces veterans, war
widows and their dependents;

training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, Paralympics sports and Olympic
sports;

contribution to the Prime Minister's National Relief Fund or any other fund set up by the
Central Government for socio-economic development and relief and welfare of the Scheduled
Castes, the Scheduled Tribes, other backward classes, minorities and women;

contributions or funds provided to technology incubators located within academic institutions
which are approved by the Central Government;

rural development projects;

Slum area development.

2. Composition of CSR Commitlee:

S.No. | Name of Director

Designation
Nature
Directorship

/
of

Number of meetings
of CSR Committee
held during the year

Number of meetings
of CSR Committee
attended during the
year

Mr. J. Brij Mohan
Reddy

Chairman

1

1

Mr. Krishnamurthy
Chaturvedi

Member

1

1

Mr. B.L Gupta

Member

1

1

3. Web-link of the website of the company where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR
projects approved by the board are disclosed: NA
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. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, and (if applicable) the report shall be
attached: NA

. Details of the amount available and required for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014: NA

S.No.

Financial Year

Amount available for
set-off from
preceding financial
years (in Rs)

Amount required to
setoff for

be

financial year, if any
(in Rs)

the

TOTAL

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 9,81.45.477/-

7

a. Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5):Rs.19,62,910/-(Rounded off)
b. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programme or activities of the previous financial years: NIL
¢. Amount required to be set off for the financial year(if any):NIL

d. Total CSR obligation for the financial year: Rs. 19,63,000/-(Rounded off)

8.

a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total
Spent
Financial
(inRs.)

Amount

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

for the
Year.

Total Amount transferred to
Unspent CSR Account as
per section 135(6).

to section 135(5).

Amount transferred to any fund specified
under Schedule VII as per second proviso

Amount

Date
Transfer

Name of the
fund

of

Amount

Date of

Transfer

Rs. 19,63,000 -

-

b) Details of CSR amount spent against on-going projects for the financial year; NA

()

(2 (3 )

| ®

(7 (G ]

(1w

(1)

5. Mo,

Name of the
Project,

lem from | Loeal
the list of | aren
aclivities (Yes/N
in o)
Schedule
VIl to the

Act,

Location of the
project.

Project
duration

Amount
allocated
for  the
project (in
Rs.).

Arnount
transferred
to  Unspent
CSR
Account for
the project
as per
Section
135(6) (in
Rs.).

Mode

tion
Direct
(Yea/MNa).

Implementa

of | Mode of Implementation

- Through Implementing
Ageney

Diistriet

CSR
Repistration
number.
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¢) Details of CSR amount spent against other than on-going projects for the financial year:

( (2] (31 i+ (&) (a3 ] (8
SlNo. | Name of the | Ttem from the Local urea Laocation of the project. Amount Mode of Mode of implementation -
Project list of activitics {Yes/ No). spent for implementation - | Throupgh implementing
in schedule VII The project | Direct agency.
to the {in Rs.). {YesMo).
AcL
P Mational State Distnict 19,63,000 Yes Mame CSR
Relief Fund registration
number.
TOTAL 19,63,000

d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NA
e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA

f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year: Rs. 19,63,000
g) Excess amount for set off, if any: NIL

S. No.

Particular Amount  (in

Rs.)
(1) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) Nil
(i1) Total amount spent for the Financial Year Nil
(iii) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(1)] Nil

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the | Nil
previous financial years, if any
Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] Nil

h) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil

S1Mo. | Preceding Amount tronsferred o | Amount spent | Amount  transferred to any fund specified under | Amount remaining to be spent

Finaneial Unspent CSR | inthe Schedule VII ns per seetion 135(6), ifany. in succeeding financial yenrs,
Yeor Account under section | reporting {in Rs.)
135(6) (in Rs.) Financinl
Year
(in Rs.)

Mame of the Amount (in Rs) | Date of transfer

i) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for on-going projects of the preceding financial

year(s):
1@ 3) @) (3) (6) 4] (8) )]
18 Project | Name Financial Year in Project Total Amount spent | Cumunlative Status  of the project -
Mo, 1D of the | which the project | dumation. | amount on the project in | Amount spent at the | Completed /Ongoing,

Projeet. | was commenced. allocated the reporting | end of  reporting

for the | Financial Year | Financial Year. {in
project (in | (in Rs). Rs.)
Rs.).




G LRL-AnnNuAL REPORT 2022-23

10, In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: (asset-wise details). NA

J) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s):
k) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset:

1) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is
registered, their address etc.:

m) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location
of the capital asset):

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
section 135(5).: NA




N. C. Mittal & Co.

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
UDIN Ref: 23503378BGWKXB4484

Re: The Members of Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited

Report on the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind-AS financial statements of Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways
Limited (“the Company”) having CIN : U45203TG2006PLC050554, which comprise the Balance Sheet as
at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows ended on that date, and notes to the
Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information for the year ended on that date (hereinafter referred to as the “Ind AS financial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the act read with the companies (Indian Accounting Standards )
Rules,2015, as amended, (“Ind-AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, the profit, and total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Rules prescribed there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by
us, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial
Statements.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of Ind AS Financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We state that we have nothing to report in this
context.

Carp Office.: Behl House, 13, Daryaganj, New Delhi-110002.
Phone: +91-11-23275021, 23241613 Fax: +91-11-23277044

Email: ncmittalandeo/@ gmail.com, nemittalandeo7 3@ gmail.com

Website: www.nemittaleo.in




Information Other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Management (including Board of Directors) are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company's Annual
Report, Board's report including Management Discussion and analysis & other annexure to
Board's report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's
Information as applicable, but does not include the Ind-AS financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work, we have performed on other information obtained prior to the date of this
audit report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard

Management's Responsibilities for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind-AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including
other comprehensive information, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Ind AS and Other accounting principles generally accepted in India including
the accounting standards specified uf/s 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind-AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an




auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but it
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Ind
AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
LC‘: csv\.*' DL)




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

iii.

1

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

g

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure A’ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with rule 7 of the of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us.

The company does not have any pending litigations if any, which would impact its
financial position except those disclosed in Ind-AS financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of
the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013,

LCOV\HD



v.  a) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts the Company has not advanced or loaned or
invested funds (either from borrowed funds or share-premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) to / in any other person / entity (i.e “intermediary”) including foreign entity with any
understanding (in writing/ otherwise) for lending / investing by the intermediary
those funds / monies whether directly / indirectly in any other person / entity identified in
any manner what so ever by / on behalf of the Company (i.e “ultimate beneficiary"). The
company (i.e. “ultimate beneficiary") has also not provided any such guarantee / security or
like to / on its behalf to any other person / entity. Similarly no such position with respect to
money / funds / guarantee / security existed as on 31.03.2022.

b) The management had represented that during the Financial year 2022-23, to the best of
it's knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, the company
has not received any fund / money directly / indirectly from any other person | entity fi.e.
"funding party”) including foreign entity, with the understanding (in writing / otherwise) to
invest / lent in any other person / entity identified in any manner what so ever by any
such funding party (i.e “ultimate beneficiary"). Similarly, the Company has not provided any
such guarantee / Security or like to any other person / entity on behalf of any such funding
party (i.e. “Ultimate beneficiary").

c) Further to sub-clause (a) & (b) above, during the audit, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the said representations contained any material mis-
statement.

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and according to
the information and explanations given to us, the limit prescribed by section 197 for
maximum permissible managerial remuneration had not been exceeded,

For N. C. Mittal & Co.
hartered Accountants

F.R.N. 000237N
Place: New Delhi
Date: 31-Aug-2023 W
o -‘/ @\E\
=it {CA apil Mittal)
BCDme},FCA D.1.5.A.(ICAI), ALILS.LA
Partner
M.No. 503378

Udin Ref: 23503378BGWKXB4454



Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditor's Report of

GAYATRI LALITPUR ROADWAYS LIMITED for the Year ended as on 31*' March 2023

(As referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” Section of our report on even date)

iii.

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant & equipment. The Company
however do-not have any intangible assets.

b. As per the information & explanation furnished to us, Property plant & equipment
had been physically verified by the Management at-least once in every three years
and usually once a year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification

c. The company has no immovable property hence paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the company.

d. No revaluation of property, plant & equipment (including right of use assets /
intangible assets) took place.

e. As per the information & explanation furnished to us, during F.Y. 2022-23 there had
been no proceedings against the company under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 & no such proceedings were also pending as at the beginning
of the said year,

As the company is engaged in the business of infrastructure development, operations
and its maintenance and there is no inventory in hand at any point of time, hence
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable to the compa ny.

During the year, the Company has not made and investment / given guarantee /
provided security / granted any loans and advances (secured or unsecured) to
companies, firms, limited liabilities partnership or other parties. Hence, reporting under
clause (a) to (c) of Para 3(iii) are not applicable. However, balances w.r.t advance given
in past, is outstanding as on balance-sheet date, details of which are as per note no. 37
(Related Parties Disclosures) of the financial statement. The terms do-not seem to be
prejudicial in view of similar terms enjoyed by the auditee from any such companies. No
repayment schedule had been stipulated for said advance which is repayable on
demand, hence not overdue. There had been no extension / renewal of existing loan
/advance & no fresh loan / advance given, during the year. For percentage &
aggregate of such advance etc to promoters & related parties, reference may be made
to note no. 2A besides note no. 37 of the financial statements as mentioned above.

During the year, the Company has not entered into any transaction in respect of loans,
investments, guarantee and securities, which attracts compliance to the provisions of
the sections 185 of the Companies Act, 2013. Provisions of section 186 are not
applicable in view of auditee company being engaged in providing infrastructural facility.
Therefore, the paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the company for same.
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Vi

wi.

viii.

xi.

The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any
unclaimed deposits as at 31" March 2023, therefore directives issued by the Reserve
Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of
the Companies Act and the rules framed there under are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is prima-facie maintaining the cost records as specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

a. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the books of accounts, the company has been generally regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employee state
insurance, income tax, Goods & Service tax, cess and other statutory dues during the
year with the appropriate authorities. As on 31" March 2023, there are no undisputed
statutory dues payables for period exceeding for a period more than six month from the
date they become payable.

b. According to the information and explanation given to us, except as stated in note no.
34 to the financial statement dealing with the contingent liabilities in respect of disputed
income tax dues of Rs. 19.94 lacs, there are no dues of income tax, Goods & Service Tax,
duty of customs, cess and any other statutory dues which have not been deposited on
account of dispute.

As per the information & explanation furnished to us, there is no un-disclosed income
{from any transaction which was not recorded in the books of accounts previously) that
has been surrendered or disclosed during the year 2022-23 in the tax assessment under
income tax act, 1961. Hence paragraph no 3(viii) of the order is not applicable.

The company has taken term loans from various banks and a financial institution. Based
on the information & explanations before us, during the year, the company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a banks and financial institution. As
explained to us, since there is no default, hence there is no such case of willful defaulter
declaration by any bank etc. As certified & based on the information shown to us,
money raised by way of term loans were applied for the purpose for which it was raised.
There were also noshort  term funds borrowed during the year. As certified to us,
there was no such case of borrowal of funds by the auditee to meet any obligation of its
associates, subsidiaries or its joint ventures. It was also certified to us that no such loan
were raised during the year by the auditee, on the pledge of securities held in
subsidiaries, joint ventures & associates as there are no investments in such securities.

The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer.
The company had also not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares / convertible debentures during the year.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, neither any fraud by the Company nor any material fraud on the company by its
officers or employees or others had been reported or had come to our notice during the
audit for the year. No such fraud, as mentioned, accordingly no such report u/s 143(12)
was required to be filed. There was no such case of Whistle blower complaint as

informed to us. LCO | l)
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xii.

®iii.

K.

XV,

xvi.

xviii.

Xix.

K.

Place: New Delhi

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence clause3 (xii) of the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order 2016 is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based
on our examination of the records of the Company, all transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Internal audit systems of the company (based on the scope & report thereof as produced
to us) seemed to be reasonable, keeping in view the size & nature of business of the
company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him and hence provisions of
section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company.

As certified to us the auditee is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Further as certified that it is not core- Investment
Company and no group company is a Core-investment company.

Based on the information produced to us and as certified to us, there was no such case of
cash loss during F.¥. 2022-23 & the previous year.
No such case of resignation of auditor from the company was there for the F.Y. 2022-23.

The financial ratios, ageing & expected date of realization of financial assets & payment
of financial liabilities as disclosed as part of financial statement reflects that overall the
position of the company is in the improved mode when compared with the last financial
year as the Company had been able to repay its debt from institutional lenders with
consequent savings in interest cost thereon as also improvement in profitability position
such that there is net profit of Rs. 9.18 Crores as against a profit of Rs. 6.33 Crore (which
was also due to major maintenance in last financial year, the benefit of which is likely to
accrue in subsequent years including as in the current financial year.

In compliance with Section 135(5) read with schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013,
company had during F.Y. 2022-23, the company contributed Rs. 19,63,000/- to the Prime
Minister's National Relief Fund.

The auditee is not a holding company, accordingly the para 3{xxi) of the order is not
applicable to it.

artered Accountants
F.R.N. DDDZ37N

= ~3
Date: 31-Aug-2023 \ d 28 (—\% :LN%\WD
VED 800 (CA\ Kapil Mittal)

SB.Com (H), F.CA, D.S.A{ICAI), ALLLS.LA
Partner
M.No. 503378
Udin Ref:23503378BGWKXB4484



ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting under Clause (i) of Sub- section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

(As referred to in Paragraph 2(f) under “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements”
section of our Report to the members of Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Management (including the Board of directors) of the company is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAIY). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company'’s respective policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal financial controls over financial reporting (the “Guidance note”)
issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

CC&MO(D




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to explanations given to us, the
company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2023, based on the internal financial controls over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For N. C. Mittal & Co.
artered Accountants

Place: New Delhi 2 y
Date: 31-Aug-2023 et ,,
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Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2023

{All imounts in € lakh unless othecwise stated)

N As at
otes
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Assels
Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment v .8 0.27 0.64
Financial assets
- Other bank balances 10 928,41 1,085.00
- Others 4 9,385.04 11,003.53
Deffered Tax Asset (Net) 5 705.97 55286
Other Non-Current Assets 6 13.72 59,91
14,033.41 12,702.03
Current assets
Financial Assers
- [twvestments 7 57.96 -
- Trade receivables g 431.10 -
= Cash and cash equivalents 9 ti80.50 239413
- Loun 11 1,296.57 1, 880,37
- Oithers 12 1,116.91 1,4:6.25
Uhther Current Assets 13 1605 1446
4,199.09 5,735.21
Total asscta 15,232,50 18,437.25
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equaty share capital 14 3,179.80 3,179.80
Otther equity 15 3,613.38 33373
Total Equity 6,793.18 6,523.53
Mon-current Liabilides
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 16 4,748.75 7,263.30
Long-teem provisions 17 3,160,600 2,120.90
7,909.35 9,384.20
Current liabilities
Finaneial linhilities
-Uither Finnneinl Linhilites
-Cuerent maturities of long-teem boreowings 18 - 2,117.20
~Oihers 18 129.75 159,71
-Trade payables 19 - 238.96
Provisions 17 4.48 0.28
Other curcent liabilines 20 305.73 13.537
529.96 2,529.51
Total equity and liabilities 15,232.50 18,437.25

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the fnancial statements.
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

Place: ?\‘-?;w Delhi

Date: -f-2o17
UDIN Ref 2350337886 WkxBH 84 U, Nagendra Varma
F_____.

o

For and on behalf of Board of directors of
Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited

Y -Negrmdon Vo™

ef Fi ial Officer
e
R h

Chief Executive Officer

Director
DIN:08

Azad SinghMNadav
Company Secretary

Place: Hyderabad
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Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in T lakh unless otherwise stated)

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Revenue from operations 21 1,565.29 1,118.39
Other income 22 90.38 131.97
Finance income 23 1,870.03 2,471.54
Total income 3,525.70 3,721.90
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 24 157.16 155.05
Finance costs 25 T08.601 913.53
Depreciation and amortization expense 3 0.38 0.37
Other expenses 26 1,730.58 2,005.40
Total expense 2,596.73 3,074.35
Profit/(Loss) before tax from continuing operations 928.97 647.55
(1) Current tax 14646 127.21
) MAT Credit Entitlement {152.31) (113.14)
Income tax expense (5.85) 14.07
Profit/(Loss) for the year 034,82 633.48
Interim Dividend 648.68 B58.55
Other comprehensive income

Re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans (16.50) 0.46
Total comprehensive income for the year 269.64 (224.60)
Eamings per equity share (EPES) in Rupees
Basic .85 (0.71)
Diluted 0.85 0.71)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements,
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For N. C. Mittal & Co. For and on behalf of Board of directors of
- Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited

Kri:hna-.mn.r "cg—‘_

Director
I".Ie:nhersiﬁp Nao, 503378 DIN:
Place; New Delh

Diate:

Y e a?Jgagj ‘?3 g&? w KIB 4454 u. E’::gc..ndra Vul::icﬁ
Lg;ﬂ% Chi Fmg:f]lal o
gh

m Place: Hyderabad

Chief Executive Officer Date: (9.05.2023




Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023
(ALl amounts in ¥ lakh unless otherwize stated)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Operating activitics
Profit/ (Loss) before tax 269.64 (22400
Adjustments to reconcile profit/ (loss) before tax to net cash flows:
Diepreciation of property, plant and equipment 0.38 0.37
Chher income (8.6} (129.435)
Finance Cost 708,61 913.53
Change in operating assets and liabilitics
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions 1,043.91 (2,3801.53)
(Increase)/Decrense in trade receivables (431,100 =
(Inerease)/ Decrense in loans and other asscts 1,353.00 1.203.70
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables (238.96) 211.27
Inerense /(Decreast) in uther lnungial Tabilives {63.36) (22.48)
Increase f{Decrease) in oiher current liabilites 342.36 479
Income tnx paid, net of refund (101.270 22.06
MNet eash flow from operating activities (A) 2,838.64 (401.34)
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment . {0.15)
Investment in Fixed Deposits 156,68 2,758.54
Investment in Mutual Fureds (37.96) <
Short term loan gven 583,80 TIZ69
Interest on Fixed Deposits 43.83 178.30
Other income (Cividend from Mutual Funds) 28.33 19.99
Met cash generated/ (used) from investing activities (B) 754.68 3,729.38
Hinancing activitics
Repayment of long-term borrowings (4,631.75) (2,032.28)
Interest paid (675200 {908.41)
Met cash used in financing activities () (5,306.95) (2,940.69)
Met increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) {1,713.63) 387.35
Cash and cash equivalents a1 the beginning of the year 2,394.13 2,006.79
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 680.50 2,304.13
Componenis of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand .53 .39
Balances with banks
- m gurrent accounts 679.97 239374
Cash and cash equivalents at penod end GRO.50 2,394.13
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred 1o in our report of even date.
For N. C. Mittal & Ce. For and on behalf of Board of directors of

Chartered Accountanls Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited

; o
Sapl \q&w 3
X \

Membership No. 5[}33?34’

Place: New Delhi
Drare:

.‘,023;&3313' BG w kX B I“I'ng Chief Financial Officer

——— ;
Rautan Singh Flace: Hyderabad
Chief Execul Date Date: 09.05.2023



Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2023
{All amounts in T lakh unless otherwise stated)

(a)

(b)

Equity share capital
Number Amount

Equity shares of T10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
At 31 March 2022 3,17,98,006 3,179.80
Ar 31 March 2023 3,17,98,006 3,179.80
Other equity
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Eflmw Fﬂmp ORENti b etained carnings Total

Financial Instrument
At April 2022 2,838.80 504.87 3,343.73
Adjustment during the year = - s
Total Comprehensive income for the year = 269.64 269.64
At 31 March 2023 2,838.86 774.51 3,613.38
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Equity Component in

Financial Instrument - ik
At 1Apnl 2021 2,838.86 729.48 3,5608.34
Adjustment during the year - - -
Total Comprehensive income for the year - (224.60) (224.60)
At 31 March 2022 2,838.86 504.88 3,343.74

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

This is the Staternent of Changes in Equity Capital referred to in our report of even date.

For N. C. Mittal & Co.

Place; New Dellu
Date:

- 97503378 BorwkxB4
gy =3k

For and on behalfl of Board of direclors of
Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited

QWU. Nagendra Varma

Chief Financial

Chief Executive Officer

Director
DIN:08661228

Aza

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 09,05.2023%

24U
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Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 2023

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
(All amounts %in lakh unless otherwise stated)

Corporate Information

M/s Gayatr: Lalitpur Roadways Linuted is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) incorporated on 7th
July 2006 for execution of the project “Improvement, Operation and Maintenance, Rehabilitation and
Strengthening of existing 2-lane Road and widening to 4-lane Divided Highway of NH-25/26 in the state of
Uttar Pradesh on Build Operate Transfer (BOT)-Annuity Basis. The company has entered into a Concession
Agreement with National Highways Authority of India, which specified a two and a half year of construction
period and seventeen and a half years of Operation & Maintenance period. The project has achieved the
Commercial Operations Date on 31st July 2010 for 45.22 Kms of the Project Highway, out of 49.305 Kms. The
company has obtained Final Completion Certificate with effect from 19 March 2012,

Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared m accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under
the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are
measured at fair values. The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2016. Unless otherwise stated, the accounting policies applied by the Group are
consistent with those used in the previous year.

All assets and labilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the group's normal
operating cycle and other critena set out i the Schedule 111 to the Act. Based on the nature of work and
the ttme between the acquisiion of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash

equivalents, the group has ascertained its operating cycle as up to twelve months for the purpose of
current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities

b) Use of estimates

The preparation of the standalone financial statements is in conformity with Indian GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the balances of assets and liabilities and
disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the reporting date of the financial statements and
amounts of income and expenses. Examples of such estimates include the provision for doubtful

receivables, determination of recoverable amounts of fixed assets, deferred tax assets, employee benefits
and useful lives of fixed assets.

Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions,
actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recogmsed
prospectively in the current and future periods.

¢) Financial Instruments

A Bnancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial

liabik wity mstrument of another entity.




Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 2023

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
{(All amounts Xin lakh unless otherwise stated)

a. Financial Asset
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recogmsed initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, a ‘debt instrament’ is measured at the amortised cost if both
the following conditions are met:

a) The asset 1s held within a business model whose objective 1s to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

This category 1s the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost
15 calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
mtegral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This
category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) 15 pnmarily derecognised (.. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

a) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b) the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, and (1) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (if) the Company has neither transferred
nor retamned substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, bur has transferred control of the asset.

¢) The income pertains to the construction period will be used to derecognise/adjust agamnst Financial
Asset.

b. Financial Liability

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through the
Statement of Profit and Loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
mstruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised mutially at far
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

274




Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 2023

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
(All amounts Rin lakh unless otherwise stated)

Financial liabilities at fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss include financial labilities
designated upon mtial recognition as at fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss. Financial
habilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss are
designated as such at the mitial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.
For hiabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are
recognized m OCIL. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L.

However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair
value of such hability are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company has not
designated any financial liability as at fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Loans and borrowings

This 1s the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derccognised as well as through
the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
mcluded as finance costs in the statement of the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability 1s replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new hability.

The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised m the statement of the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

d) Fixed assets

Tangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition, less accumulated depreciation thereon. The cost of an
item of fixed asset comprises its purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable taxes
or levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended
use; any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Intangible assets represent commercial rights to collect toll fee in relation to roads projects which has
been accounted at the cost incurred on the project activity towards reconstruction, strengtheming,
widening, rehabilitation of the roads on build, operate and transfer basis. It includes all direct material,
labour and subcontracting costs, inward freight, duties, taxes, obligation towards negative grant payable
to concessionaires, if any, and any directly attributable expenditure on making the commercial right

ready for its intended use.

J
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Gavyatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 2023

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
(All amounts Tin lakh unless otherwise stated)

¢)

g)

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation on assets has been provided on straight-line basis at the useful lives specified in Schedule
IT to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions / deductions is calculated pro-rate from/to
the month of additions / deductions.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there 1s any indication of
mmpairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s
net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value at the weighted average cost of capital.

Revenue
Revenue Recognition :

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 “ Revenue from Contracts with Customers * with the date of
initial application being April 1, 2018 . Ind AS 115, revenue from contracts with customers, mandatory
for reporting period begmning on or after April 1, 2018 replaced existing revenue recognition
requirements 1.e Ind AS 18 Revenue Recogmion and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts. There were
no significant adjustments required to the retaned earnings as on April 1, 2018.

Accordingly, the policy for Revenue is amended as under:

The Company derives revenue primarily from annuity and other miscellaneous construction contracts.
To recognize revenue, the Company applies the following five step approach: (1) identify the contract
with a customer, (2) identify the performance obligations in the contract, (3) determine the transaction
price, (4) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligation in the contract, and (5) recognize
revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied.

At contract mception, the Company assesses its promise to transfer services to a customer to identify
separate performance obligations.. The Company applies judgment to determine whether each service
promused to a customer are capable of being distinct, and are distinct in the context of the contract, if
not, the promised services are combined and accounted as a single performance obligation. For
performance obhgations where control 1s transferred over time, revenue are recognized by measuring
progress towards completion of the performance obligation. The selection of the method to measure
progress towards completion requires judgment and is based on the nature of the services to be

provided. The method for recogmzing revenues and cost depends on the nature of the services
rendered.

Others

Insurance and other claims are recogmized as revenue on virtual certainty of receipt basis.
Dividend mcome is recognized when the right to receive is established. Other items of income are

simand when the right to receive arises and recovery is certain.

@ A
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Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 2023

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
(All amounts Rin lakh unless otherwise stated)

h) Borrowings Costs

)

k)

In Case of concession arrangement under financial asset model, borrowing Costs that are attributable to
the acquisition and/or construction of the infrastructure are charged to The Statement of Profit and
Loss in the period in which such costs are incurred.

In Case of concession arrangement under intangible asset model, borrowing cost of qualifying assets are
caprtalized as part of cost of such assets till such time the asset is ready for its ntended use. A qualifying
asset is one that requires substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. Any income on the
temporary investments of borrowings is deducted from the borrowing cost. All borrowing cost
subsequent to the capitalization of the intangible assets are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss
in the period in which such costs are incurred.

Earnings/(loss) per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net the Statement of Profit and Loss for the

period attnbutable to equity sharcholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the penod.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net the Statement of Profit and Loss for

the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, if any.

Employee Benefits

Provisions for/contributions to retitement benefit schemes are made as follow as per Indian
Accounting Standard ( Ind AS) — 19, “Employee Benefits:

) Provident fund on actual liability basis

b) Gratuity based on actuanal valuation

) Leave encashment benefit on retirement on actuarial valuation basis.

Taxes on Income
Current Texe

Tax on income for the current year is determined on the basis of taxable income and tax credits
computed m accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred Tax:

Deferred Tax is recognized on timing differences between the accounting income and the taxable
income for the year, and qualified using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted as on the
Balance Sheet date.

At each reporting date, the entities in the group re-assess unrecogmised deferred tax assets. [t recognizes
unrecognised deferred tax asset to the extent that it has become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as
the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available agamnst which such deferred tax

carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The entities in the group
efites-down the carrying amount of deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably
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Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 2023

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
(All amounts Rin lakh unless otherwise stated)

b

P

certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, thar sufficient future taxable income will be available
agamst which deferred tax asset can be realised. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it

becomes reasonably certain or virtually cectain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income
will be available.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax Liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow smtement comprise of cash at bank and on hand and include
short term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provision 1s recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event and when
it 15 probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined
based on management’s best estimate required to settle the obhgation at the balance sheet date. These
are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates. A
disclosure of a contingent liability is made when there is 2 possible or a present obligation that may, but
probably will not, require an outflow of resources.

Claims ;

a.  Company’s claims aganst the Concessioning Authority for additional scope of work, utility shiftng
etc. are accounted for as and when received.

b. Contractor’s clums regarding additional scope of work, utihty shifting erc. are accounted for when
related claims of the Company are received from the Concessioning Authority.

c.  Other claims against/by the company are accounted for as and when accepted.

Pre-operative Expenditure
Incidental expenditure incurred during construction period towards “Concessionaire Asset” is
caputahsed on completion of construction and obtaining related COD.

Foreign currency transactions and derivatives

A The reporting currency of the company is the Indian Rupee.

b.  Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition m the foreign currency, using the
exchange rate on the date of the transaction.

¢. At each Balance Sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are reported usng the closing rate.
Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting at each balance
sheet date of monetary items at the closing rate are adjusted in pre-operative expenses.

e objective of the Ind AS 116 1s to ensure that lessees and lessors provide relevant information in a
pnner that fathfully represents those transactions. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting

2



Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 2023

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
{All amounts in lakh unless otherwise stated)

model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.

Under Ind AS 116 lessees have to recognise a lease liability reflecting future lease payments and a ‘right-
of-use asset’ for almost all lease contracts. Under Ind AS 116, a contract 15, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. The company has not entered into any lease agreement for a period of more than 12
months and hence, Ind AS 116 is not applicable.

r) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

This Standard shall be applied in accounting for investments in associates and to set out the
tequirements for the application of the equity method when accounting for investments in associates
and joint ventures. The Standard shall be applied by all entities that are investors with joint control of, or
significant influence over, an investee. The Company has not made any investments in associates, hence,
this Ind-AS 28 is not applicable.

s) Business Combinations

Ind AS 103 provides guidance on accounting for business combinations under the acquisition method.
A business combination is a transaction or other event in which a reporting entity (the acquirer) obtains
control of one or more businesses (the acquiree). The Company is not involved in any transaction of
business combination under acquisition method and hence, Ind AS 103 is not applicable.

t) Joint Arrangements

The Standard shall be applied by all entities that are a party to a joint arrangement. A joint arrangement
is an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint control. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. The company is a special purpose
vehicle (SPV) has not entered into any arrangement with any entity having joint control or joint venture.
Hence, Ind AS 111 1s not applicable.

2A. Additional Regulatory Information

(Appdicable vide MCA notification w.ef, 1% April 2021 i.e, FY 2021-22):
i The Borrowings from Banks and Financial institutions have been used for the purpose for which it was

taken. (Also refer Note No. 16)

1. The Company did not have any intangible assets / intangible asset under development as on 31.03.2022
and 31.03.2023.

. During the Financial Year 2022-23, the Company did not hold any property either in the name of any
other person or jomtly with any other person. (Also Refer Note No. 3)

1. There is no revaluation of property, plant and equipment during the Financial Year 2022-23. (Also Refer
Note No. 3)

v. With respect to the loans and advances given to, following disclosures are made:




Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 2023
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information

(All amounts %in lakh unless otherwise stated)

Type of
Borrower

Amount of Loan or
advance in the nature
of outstanding

Percentage to the total
loans and advances in
the nature of loans

Promoter-Gayatri Highways Rs.251.01 lac 19.36%
Limited

Directors MNil Nil
KMDPs il Ml
Related Parties - Gayatri Jhansi Rs.784.90 lac 60.54%
Roadways Ltd

Related Parties -Shrewd Rs.206.60 Lac 20.10%

Constructions Pyt Ltd (Ao refer point
no. xriif heretn after)

V1.
Vi

Vit

1%.

X1

X1l

Xiv.

o o8

{Please refer note no. 37)

As on 31.03.2022 and 31.03.2023, there was no capital work in progress.

Neither any proceedings under the Benamu Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 read with rules there-
under have been mtiated dunng the I.Y. 2022-23 against the Company nor any such proceedmgs are
pending as on 31.03.2022 and 31.03.2023.

Neither any default has been made during the FY. 2022-23 in repayment of mnterest and instalment on
borrowings from the banks, financial institutions and other lenders nor any such default existed as on
31.03.2022 and 31.03.2023. (Also Refer Note No. 16)

The Company did not have any transactions with any such company which was struck -off under
section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or even under Section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956.

There were no charges pending for registration / for sansfaction with ROC as on 31.03.2023.

There 1s no such non-comphance under section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(restrictions on number of layers) Rules, 2017 in so far as investment in shareholding m other
Companies is concerned.

The various accounting ratios as so required under regulatory disclosures are as per note number 35 [as
per IND AS].

Neither there was scheme of arrangement in terms of Section 232 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013
which was approved during the financial year 2022-23 with respect to the company nor was any such
scheme was pending for implementation as on 31.03.2022.

Dunng the Financial Year 2022-23, the Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either
Srone borrowed funds or share-prewism or auy otber sources or kind of funds) to / i any other person / entity (Le.
“Intermedianes”) including foreign entity with any understanding (in writing / othermise), for lending /
investing by intermediaries those funds / monies whether directly / indirectly in any other person /
eatity identified i any manner whatsoever by / on behalf of the Company (i.e. Ultimate Bewefeciary), OR
to provide any such guarantee / security or like to / on Company’s behalf (.e.” Ultimate Beneficiary”) to
any other person / entity. Similarly, no such position with respect to money / funds / guarantee /
security etc. existed as on 31.03.2022.

During the Financial year 2022-23, the company has not received any fund / money directly / indirectly
from any other person / ennty (ie. “funding party”) including foreign entity with the understanding (in
writing /[ othernese) to mvest / lent in any other person / entity identified i any manner whatsoever by
any such funding party (“ie. ultimate beneficiary”). Similarly the Company has not provided any such
guarantee / Security or like to any other person / entity on behalf of any such funding party (“wltinate
beneficiary”).

There 1s no un-disclosed income from any transaction which was not recorded in the books of accounts

previously that has been surrendered or disclosed during the year 2022-23 in the tax assessment under
imcome tax act, 1961.



Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 2023

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
{(All amounts Sin lakh unless otherwise stated)

xvi. The company has not traded / invested in erypto currency / virtual currency during the year 2022-23.
There was also no such investments as on 31.03.2022.

a) There 1s no change m equity share capital during the F.Y. 2022-23 and 2021-22 due to prior period
error or any other reason.

b) There 1s no change in equity share capital during the F.Y. 2022-23 and 2021-22 due to any other
reason other than (a) mentioned above.

¢) There was a change in the percentage of the Shareholding of the existing promoter (India Infra Fund)
dunng the F.Y. 2022-23 as compared to the position as on 31.03.2022 which has transferred their 49%
shareholding, (14 Refer Note No. 14 for details)

XVIIL

xix. A) During F.Y. 2022-23 & 2021-22, there were no changes due to of changes in accounting policy /
prior period errors, restatement of balance at the beginning of reporting periods, Dividend, transfer to
retamed earning & any another reasons, in followmg components of Other Equity (as disclosed in note
no.15}:

Share application money (pending allotment)

Capital Reserve

Securines Premium

Debt mstruments through other comprehensive income

Equaty instruments through other comprehensive income

Effectve portion of cash flow hedges

Revaluation surplus

i R ol i

Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of foreign operations as there are no
such operations

9. Other items of other comprehensive income (exveps actnarial valuation of gratuity)

10. Money Received against Share warrants,

B) The position of Other Equity (refer note 15) on respective dates is as follows:

Rs. 1n lacs
Equty component  of | Retamned Earning Other Comprehensive Income
compound financial
mstrument
Ason Ason As on As on As on As on
31.03.2022 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 31.03.2023
283886 2838.80 504.88 774.52 0.46 (16.50)

s Undisputed Trade receivable as on 31.03.2023 1s Rs. 431.10 lac (Nil as on 31.03.2022) which 1s less
than 6 months. Disputed Trade Receivables as on 31.03.2023 and 31.03.2022 15 Nil. Unbilled Due as
on 31.03.2023 and 31.03.2022 1s Nil. (also refer note no.8)

XX1, Banks deposits (also refer note no. 10) with more than 12 months maturity is given below:

XX1.

As on 31.03.2023
Rs, 928.41 lac

As on 31.03.2022
Rs. 1085.09 lac

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Particulars During FY 2022-23 During FY 2021-22

Amount required to be spent by
the company during the year

Rs. 19.63 lacs Rs. 14.71 lacs

Amount of expenditure incurred | Rs. 19.63 lacs Rs. 14.71 Jacs

- %hortﬁﬂl at the end of the year & i
F

e M
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 2023

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
(All amounts in Rin lakh unless otherwise stated)

Total of previous years shortfall s :

Reason for shortfall -

Nature of CSR activities = Contribution to Prime
Minister's National Relief Fund

Derails  of  related  pary - -
transachons, e.g., contribution to a
trust controlled by the company

e




Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited
(All amounts in T lakh unless otherwise stated)

3 Property plant and equipment

Office Furniture and Computers & ; i

Equipments fixtures Software Adr Conilxtiones Total
Gross block
As at 1 April 2022 0.67 0.44 .01 0.62 5.74
Additions during the year ,,
As at 31 March 2023 0.67 0.44 4.01 0.62 5.74
Accumulated
depreciation
Up to 31 March 2022 0.67 044 361 0.38 5.10
Charge for the year 0.26 0.12 0.38
Revaluation during the year - - . .
Any other change o of - - "
vigwvemiiuny frpairmaewt eversod tnven
Up to 31st March 2023 0.67 0.44 3.87 0.50 5.48
Net block
As at 31 March 2023 - - 0.15 0.12 0.27
As at 31 March 2022 - - 0.41 0.24 0.64
Useful life of Asset 5 years 10 years 3 years 15 years
Note:

1. A class of assets is a grouping of assets of similar nature and use in entity's operations.
2. None of the asset is held for disposal or retirement from active use as at end of the year as, the expected cash
nflow/value to be realised from the usage for the remaining useful life of the asset.
3. Term loans from banks and others are secured by all the movables, including movable plant and machinery, machinery
spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets, present and future.

Other Financial Assets (Non-Current)

As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Financial Asset (Carriageway)
Opening Balance 12417.43 13,617.50
Add: Financial Income 1.870.03 247154
Add: O & M Income 1,565.29 1,118.39
Less: Annuity Received {4,790.00) (4,790.00)
Closing Balance 11,062.75 12,417.43
Less: Transferred to Financial Asset (Current) (L677.71) {1,413.90)
Closing Mon-Current Financial Asset 9,385.04 11,003.53
Deilered Tax Asser (Net)
As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

MAT Credit Entilement 705.97 552,86

705.97 552.86
Movement in Deffered ‘Tax Asset
Opening balance 552.86 454.03
Addition during the year 152.31 113.14
Adjustments 0.80 (14.31)
Closing balance 705.97 552.86

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 - "Income taxes"
The company is required to pay MAT as current income tax in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.
The company is eligible for deduction under section 80IA of Income Tax Act, 1961 and the company start to avail tax

hehdwepenod from FY 2015-16 for 10

&,

N

P

-

years out of 20 years block commencing from the date of COD. Company has not
d tax assets (DTA) on brought forward losses and accumulated depreciation during the current year since all
getting reversed during such tax holiday period.

o

T\\
st



Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
{All amounts in ¥ lakh unless otherwise stated)

6 Other Non-Current Assets

As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Taxes Asset (Net)
TS Recievable,/Refundable 13.72 59.91
13.72 59.91
7 Invesiments
As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Investments in Mutual Funds (unguoted) * 57.96 -
57.96 -
* invested from surplus funds to earn returns in the normal operating cycle.
8 Trade receivables
As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(Unsecured, considered good)
- Considered good
- Others 431.10 -

431.10 -

No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly

with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in
which any director is partner, a director or a member.

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables considered good and unsecured:

-Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment:
(a) Less than 6 months 431.10

() 6 month to 1 year s .
() 1 year to 2 years = =
{d) 2 year to 3 years

(¢) More than 3 years - %
Total 431.10 -
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — eredit impaired - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables — considered good >

significant increase in credit risk 2 =
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired & =
Total 431.10 -




Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
(All amounts in % lakh unless otherwise stated)

9 Cash and cash equivalents

As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balances with banks
- On current accounts 679.97 23934
Cash on hand .53 (.39
680.50 2,394.13

For the purpose of the statement of cash lows, cash and cash cquivalents comprise the following:

As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balances with banks
= on current accounts-at Regd Office 641,16 1,980.13
- on current accounts-at Site Office 3R.81 413.01
Cash on hand-at Regd Office 0.53 0.09
Cash on hand-at Site Office - 0.30
10 Other bank balances
As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balances with banks
Fixed deposits with original maturity more than 3
months having remaining maturity of less than 12
months from the Balance Sheet date (Lein marked
to [IDFC Bank for DSRA and MM Reserve) -[refer
note 2A (xxi)] 92541 1,085.09
928.41 1,085.09
11 Current Loan
As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Loan to related party* (refer note -37) 1,296.57 1,880.37
Ovther loans (i, seowred [ thase udth eredit impaived | aith
sigwificans inerease fa oredis risk) ¥* - -
1,296.57 1,880.37
* wnsecsred, eowsidered good
¥ tneliding Laan ro Directors & ather offfcers/ their partiers © relatives severally or jorutly with others,
12 Other financial assets
As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current
Financial Asset - Carrtageway 1L,677.71 1,413.90
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits 39.20 32.35
1,716.91 1,446.25
13 Other Current Assets
As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Prepaid and accrrued Expeneses ' 14.21 14.21
Other Advances - 0.25
Advances to Related party 1.84 -
16.05 14.46

T




Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
(All amounts in ¥ lakh unless otherwise stated)

14 Share capital

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number Amount MNumber Amount

Aunthorized
Equity shares of F10 each 3,50,00,000 3,500.00 3,50,00,000 3,500.00

3,50,00,000 3,500.00 3,50,00,000 3,500.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
Eequity shares of F10 each 3,17,98,006 3,179.80 3,17,98,006 3,179.80

3,17,98,006 3,179.80 3,17,98,006 3,179.80

(a) Reconciliation of equity shares outs tanding at the beginning and end of the reporting period

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Number Amount MNumber Amount
At the beginning of the year 3,17,98,006 3,179.80 3,17,98,006 3,179.80
Issued during the year - - - 2
Balance at the end of the year 3,17,98,006 3,179.80 3,17,98,0006 3,179.80

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥10 per share. Fach holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share. The rights and preferences of each shareholder are in accordance with the Shareholder's
Agreement dated 14th May 2007.

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is
subject to the approval of sharcholders in the ensuing annual general meeting, During the year, Rs.648.68 lac interim
dividend was declared by the Company. (Previous Year: Rs. 858.55 lac interim dividend).

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of
the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

(c) Shares held by holding Company, ultimate holding Company, subsidiaries / associates of holding Company or ultimate
holding Company

Qut of the equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company and
their subsidiaries /associates are as below:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Mumber Amount Mumber Amount
Gayatri Highways Limited - Holding 1,62,18,000 1,621.80 1,62,18,000 1,621.80

Company *

* Incl. shares held by individual share holders as a nominee.

e M




Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
(All amounts in ¥ lakh unless otherwise stated)

14 Share capital (continued..)
(d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Y change 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
dusing the Number of Number of
" i, ¥ .
yeir v o of holding " % of holding
Gayatri Highways Limited and its
nominnes (Holding Company & - 1,62,18,000 51.00% 1,62,18,000 51.00%
Promaoter)
FC Limi — .
e Limie Doty SO 0 : 000% 3180000 10.00%
Infrastructure Fund) (Promoter)*
Indm Infrastructure Fund (Trustee: .
, ¢ - ! 1 00
IDFC Trustee Co. Ltd)(Promoter)* {R9.00) B 24,010,000 LA
. . -
Shrewd Constructions Private 19.00 1,55,80,000 49.00% . 0.00%

Limited *

‘During the year, entire shareholding of 49.00% (in agreegate) of India Infrastructure Fund transferred to Shrewd
Constructions Private Limited on 22.02.2023.

Promoters having less than 5% shacholding during FY 2021-22 and FY 2022-23 - Nil

15 Other equity

As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Equity Component of Financial Instrument

Opening balance 2,838.80 2,838.86
Adjustment during the year = =
Closing balance 2,838.86 2,838.86
Retained earnings

Balance as per last audited financial statements 504.88 729.48
Add: Total Comprehensive Income for the year 269.64 (224.60
Balance ar the end of the year 774.52 504.88
Total other equity 3,613.38 3,343.74

(Refer to Note 2A-xix)

e A
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Gayarri Lalitpur Roadways Limited
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
(All amounts in T lakh unless otherwise stated)

16 Borrowings

As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

MNon-current borrowings
Term loans
Secured
From banks 3,786.86 7,474.60
From financial institutions 961.89 1,905.90
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings - 2.117.20

4,748.75 7,263.30
Current borrowings
Current maturities of long term loans
Term loans
Secured
From banks and financial institutions 2 2117.20

- 2,117.20

I. Nature of security for secured loans:
Term loans from banks and others are secured by:

i. First mortgage and charge of all the borrower’s immovable properties, present and future.
it. First charge by way of hypothecation of

2. all the movables, including movable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicles
and all other movable assets, present and future.

b. Operating cash flows, book debts and receivables and any other revenues of whatsoever nature and wherever arising, present
and future.

c. All intangibles, including but not limited to goodwill, uncalled capital, present and future.

d. Assignment or creation of security interest in i) all the right, ntle, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the
borrower in the project documents, duly acknowledged and consented to by the relevant counter-parties to such project
documents. ii) all the rights, title, intevest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the borrower in the clearanecs, i) all the
right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the borrower in any letter of credit, puarantees, performance
bond provided by any party to the Project Documents and iv) all Insurance Contracts/Insurance proceeds.

e. Escrow Account, Debr Service Reserve, other reserves and any other bank accounts of the borrower wherever maintained.

f. Pledge of all the shares (equity and preference) held by the sponsors representing 51% of the paid up share capital.
I1, Maintenance of DSR and MMR

As per the Article 6 of the Common Loan Agreement, the borrower shall at all times during the term of the agreement maintain
Debit Service Reserve (DSR) to meet the Debt Service Requirements for an amount equivalent to the ensuing six months
principal and interest payment due to the Loan A Lenders,

The borrower shall also maintan a Major Maintenance Reserve (MMR) to the extend stipulated by the Loan A Lenders in
Schedule 4 for undertaking major maintenance in terms of the Concession Agreement.

III. Nature of Security for Subordinated Debt:

Term Loans — Subordinated Debt from IDFC First Bank is secured by:

i. Second mortgage and charge of all the borrower’s immovable properties, present and future.

ii. Second charge by way of hypothecation of

a. all the movables, including movable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicles
and all other movable assets, present and future.

b. Operating cash flows, book debts and receivables and any other revenues of whatsoever nature and wherever arising, present

AN pibles, including but not limited to goodwall, uncalled capital, present and future.

&2 xg‘Q/



Gayarri Lalitpur Roadways Limited
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
(All amounts in T lakh unless otherwise stated)

16 Borrowings (continued...)
d. Assignment or creation of security interest in i) all the right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the
borrower in the project documents, duly acknowledged and consented to by the relevant counter-parties to such project
documents. ii) all the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the borrower in the clearances. i) all the
right, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands whamsoever of the borrower in any lerter of credit, guarantees, performance
bond provided by any party to the Project Documents and iv) all Insurance Contracts/Insurance proceeds.

e. Escrow Account, Debt Service Reserve, other reserves and any other bank accounts of the borrower wherever maintained.
f. Pledge of all the shares (equity and preference) held by the sponsors representing 51% of the paid up share capital.

IV. Terms of repayment of Secured Loans

a. The Senior Debt from banks and others, amounting to Rs.2,33,57,00,000/-, is repayable in 29 unequal half yearly installments
ranging from 1.68% to 7.38% commencing from 15th December 2011 till 15th December 2025.

b. The Subordinate Debt availed from Infrastructure Development Finance Company Ltd.(now IDFC Bank Ltd.) amounting to

Rs.19,00,00,000/- 1s repayable in 30 unequal half yearly installments ranging from 1.50% to 10.08% commencing from 15th June
2012 ull 15th December 2026.

¢. In case of surplus cash flows, the Company has right to accelerate the repayments pro-rata amongst Senior and Sub-Debt.

d. Additional funds received, if any, from NHAI as damages towards cost escalation can be utilized towards acceleration of the
loan repayment to the extent of escalation in Interest on Term Loans.

¢) The term loan installment is paid in advance as per the clause 2.8(v) of the Common Loan Agreement which is inserted in the
amendatory loan agreement dated 28.03.2012. The extract of the clause 2.8(v) is "The Borrower shall have the right to accelerate

the repayments pro-rata amongst Senior and Sub Lenders 5o as to bring it in line with the original repayment schedule in case of
surplus cash flows.”

V. Terms of repayment of Unsecured Loans from Promoters
a. The Company shall repay the principal amount of the unsecured loan from promoters (taken as a condition of Common
Loan agreement for term loans from senior & sub-ordinate lenders i.e. lenders) after the expiry of the tenor of loan read with

|;.-S-uhvject to the Lenders’ approval, the Company has a right to advance the repayment of the Shareholders’ Loan in the event
of the cash flows of the Company are adequately in surplus for such advancement as determined by the subscriber or on
successful refinancing of the loans as determined by the subscriber.

¢. The Company has already repaid the unsecured loans availed from Promoters in earlier years.

VI. Installments Payable in next 12 months

As on 31.03.2023, there is nothing due as payable within 12 months, on account of advance istallments paid in FY 2022-23
aguinst Rs. 11.00 Cr and Rs.14.15 Crore respectively due on 13.12.2023 and 15.06.2024,

VII. Term Loan Balances as per the books

Difference in outstanding balances against borrowings from various lenders as on 31.03.2023 agreegating to Rs. 91.07 lacs is

mainly on account of loans from IIFCL amounting to Rs. 102.65 lacs towards excess interest calculated by them which is under
reconciliation as on date.

17 Provisions

As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
MNon-current
Provision for periodic maintenance 311942 2,114.86
Provision for employee benefits
-Gratuity, non-funded 41.18 6.04
3,160.60 2,120.90
Current
Provision for expenses #40 i
2.02 0.28
4.48 0.28

¢ B <



Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
(All amounts in T lakh unless otherwise stated)

18 Other financial liabilities

(iii) Disputed Dues — MSMEs / Others

As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current maturities of Iung—tcnn bormwings {see note 16 (VI) 2117.20
Sub Total - 2,117.20
Interest accrued 109.02 75.61
Creditors for expenses
- to relared party - 56.99
- to others 10.20 17.59
Employee benefits payable 10.53 9.52
Sub Total 129.75 159.711
129.75 2,276.91
19 Trade payables
As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
- Trade payables to related party - 238.96
- 238.96
iy ables Ageing Sched at f the peri
(i) Trade Payables to MSME = =
(ii) Trade Payables (other than MSME):
-Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment:
(a) Less than 6 months 238.96
(b) 6 month to 1 year
{c) 1 year to 2 years -
(d) 2 year to 3 years -
(e) More than 3 years - -
Total - 238.96

The identification of micro, small and medium enterprise swppliers av per “Micro, savall and mredinm enterprises Act, 2006 is based on
Maﬂqgeweﬂr': Enon 'deq'ge {.‘rf their statir as wiay bave thforsred by them. There are no dues to micro, small and meding enterprises as on 31 March

-

2023 or 31 March 2022,

@.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information

{All amounts in ¥ lakh unless otherwise stated)

20 Other current liabilities

As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Statutory liabilities* 390.85 13.37
Income Tax (MAT) payable 4.88 -
395.73 13.37
“includes GST and TDS-IT outstanding not more than 6 months & un-disputed
21 Revenue from operations
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Operation & Maintenance Income 485.26 363.08
Major Maintenance Income 1,080.03 755.31
1,565.29 1,118.39
22 Other income
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest on fixed deposits 56.31 109.46
Dividend from mutual funds 2833 19.99
Interest on Income Tax Refund 5.74 2.52
90.38 131.97
23 Finance Income
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest on financial asset receivable 1,B70.03 2471.54
1,870.03 247154
24 Employee benefits expense
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Salaries and wages 136.77 153.98
Gratuity 20.39 1.07
157.16 155.05

Provision for Gratuity is made on actuarial basis as summatized below. The Company does not have any policy for

Compensated Absences.
Profit and Loss account for current period
Service Cost:

Current Service Cost

290 0.72
Past service cost and loss/(gain) on curtailments and 17.07 -
Net interest cost .43 .35
Total included in "Employee Benefit Expense’ 20.39 1.07
Expenses deducted from the fund e i
20.39 107




Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
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24 Employee benefits expense (continued..)
Other Comprehensive Income for the current period

Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligitions:

Due to change in financial assumptions (0.61) (0.23)
Due to change in demographic assumptions - -
Dué¢ to experience adjustments 17.11 (0.23)
Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive Income 16.50 (0.46)
Reconciliation of defined obligation
For the vear ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Defined Benefit Obligation
Opening defined benefit obligation 6.32 571
Service Cost 290 072
Net interest expense 043 0.35
Components of actuarial gain/lossess on obligations
Due to change in financial assumptions (0.61) (0.23)
Due to change in demographic assumptions - -
Due ro expenence adjustments 17.11 (0.23%)
Past Service Cost 17.07
Benefits paid - "
Closing defined benefit obligation 43.21 6.32
Birfucation of liability as per schedule I1T
Cureent Liabiliry 2.02 0.28
Non-current Lability 41.18 6.04
Principal Actuarial Assumptions
For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discounring Rate 7.30% 6.90%
Average Salary Growth Rate 4.00% 4.00%
Withdrawal Rate 3 Yo ar all ages 3 % ac all ages

Sensitivity to key assumptions

Increase by 0.5% 4247 6.15

(% change) -1.70% -2.60%
Decrease by 0.5% 43.97 6.49

(%o Ch‘rlﬂ-gE] 1.76% 2.81%
Salary Growth Rate Sensitivity

Increase by 0.5% 43.99 6,48

(Yo change) 1.81% 2.57%
Decrease by 0.5% 4245 6.17

(% change) -1.76% -2.30%
Wi Rate (W, i

W.R, X 110% 43.36 035

(%a change) 0.35% 0.50%
WR X 00% 43.05 6.28

(%o change) -0.36% -0.52%




Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
{(All amounts in T lakh unless otherwise stated)

24 Employee benefits expense (continued..)
Major risk to the Post Employment Benefit plan
A. Actuarial Risk:
It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons:
Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes thar are higher than the assumed salary escalation will result into an
increase in Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.
Vadability in mortality rates: If a ctual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality rate assumption than the
Gratuity Benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the
acceleration of cash flow will lead to an acrarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary
growth and discount rate.
Vanability in withdrawal cates: 1 factual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption than

the Grawity Benefits will be paid earier than expected. The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are
vested as at the resignation date.

B. Investment Risk:
For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be
the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the

future discount rate. This can result in wide fluctuations in the net ability or the funded status if there are significant
changes in the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

C. Ligunidity Risk:
Employees with high salarics and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accurnulate significant level of benefits.
If some of such employees resign/retire from the company there can be strain on the cashflows.

D. Market Risk:

Market riski s a collective term for risks that ace celated to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets.One
actuadal assumption that has a material effect is the discountrate. The discountrate reflects the time value of money.
An increase in discount cate leads to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & viceversa, This
assumption depends on the yields on the corporate/govemment bonds and hence the valuation of liability is exposed
to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date.

E. Legislative Risk:

Legislative nisk 1s the nsk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in the
legistation/regulation. The government may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay
higher benetits to the employees. This will directly attect the present value of the Detined Benefit Obligation and the
same will have to be recognized immediately in the year when any such amendment is effective.

& é«f.




Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
(All amounts in T lakh unless otherwise stated)

25 Finance costs

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest on borrowings [see note 16(VII))] 684.97 891.87
Other finance costs 23.64 21.66
708.61 913.53
26 Other expenses
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
COperations and maintenance expenses 485.26 473.85
Provision for Perindic maintenance expenses 1,004.56 75531
Periodic maintenance expenses 75.47 621.97
NHAI IC expenses 40.03 30.09
Rent expenses 14.53 14.53
Insurance expenses 2.27 2175
Travelling and conveyance expenses 332 1.47
Legal and professional charges (refer note below) 35.02 49.51
Site Office expenses 15.54 16.40
SR Espenses 19.63 14.71
Sitting, Fees 230 1.30
Roughness/Bump Indicator/ Beam Deflection Test charges 8.38 =
Receivables Written off - 137
Miscellaneous expenses 4.21 314
1,730.58 2,005.40
Legal and professional charges includes Payment to anditors as below:
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
As auditor:
Audit fee 3.54 3.54
In other capacity:
Reimbursement of expenses - -
3.54 3.54

27 Eamings per share
Basic EPS amount are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year,
The following reflects the income and shates data used in the basic EPS computations:

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company 269.64 (224.60)
Weighted average number of equity shares in caleulating basic
EPES 3,17,98,006 3,17,98,006
Nominal value per equity share 10 10
Effect of dilution;
Weaghted average number of equity shares used in computation
of diluted EPES 3,17,98,006 3,17,98,006
Basic and Diluted Earnings per share in Rupees 0.85 0.71)
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28 Breakup of financial assets and financial liabilities carried at amortized cost

As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Financial assets
Financial assets-Others (Carriageway) 9,385.04 11,003.53
Cash and cash equivalents (80.50 2,394.13
Other bank balances 0928.41 1,085.09
Loan 1,296.57 1,880.37
Others 1,716.91 1,446.25
Total 14,007.43 17,809.37
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 4,748.75 9,380.50
Trade payables . 238.96
Other tinancial habilities 129.75 159.71
Total 4,878.50 9,779.17

The carrying amount of current financial assets and current trade and other payables measured at amortised cost are considered
to be the same as their fair values, due to their short term nature.

The carrying value of Rupee Term Loan and Loan from Related Party approximate fair value as the instruments are ar prevailing
market rate.

29 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

‘The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in Future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and labilities within the next financial year, are
described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or

circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they
OCCUr.

30 Fair Values

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, current loans, trade payables and other current
liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments or as they carry
market rate of interest,

31 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The company's activitics expose it to variety of financial risks : market risk, credit risk and liquidity sk, The company's focus is
to foresee the unpredicrability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance.
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management
framework. The Board of Directors has established a risk management policy to identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and o monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management systems are
reviewed periodically to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Board of Directors oversee

compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the risk management framework.

¥



Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
{All amounts in ¥ lakh unless otherwise stated)

31 Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

i) Interest rate risk
The company is exposed to interest rate risk because it borrows funds prmarily at floating interest rates. However, the
interest rates are dependant on base rates/prime lending rates of the lead bank which are not expected to change very
frequently and the estimate of the management s that these will not have significant upward trend.

The company's exposure to interest rate risk due to variable interest rate borrowings is as follows:
As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Senior Debt from Banks - Variable rate borrowings 4,748.75 9,380.50

Sensitivity analysis based on average outstanding Senior Debt

Impact on profit/ loss after tax

Interest Rate Risk Analysis 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Impact on Increase or decrease in interest rate by 25 17.66 25.99
basis points (Rupees in lac)

Note: Profit will increase in case of decrease in interest rate and vice versa

ii) Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Auctuate because of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk).

The company is exposed to price risk due to investments in mutual funds and classified as fair value through profit and loss.
The company measures risk through sensitivity analysis.

The company's risk management policy is to mitigate the risk by investments in diversified mutual funds.

The company does not expose to price risks as on 31st March 2023.

b) Credit risk
Credir risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
company. The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing creditworthy counterparties. The management believes that the
credit risk is negligible since its main receivable is from the grantors of the concession which is Government Authority.

c) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that
are settled by delivering cash or another financial assets.

The company is exposed to liquidity risk due to bank borrowings and trade and other payables.

The company measures risk by forecasting cash flows.

The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilittes when due without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. The
Company ensures that it has sufficient fund to meet expected operational expenses, servicing of financial obligations.

The following tables detail the company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed
repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the company can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that lnterest Hows are ﬂoﬂnng rate, the undiscounted amount is dm?cd from interest rate curves at the end of the
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31 ¢) Liquidity Risk (Continued)

As at 31st March 2023 Carrying Amount | upto 1 year 1- 2 years 2 - 5 years > 5 years
Liability

Borrowings 4,748.75 4,748.75 -

Other Financial Liabilities 129,75 129.75 - - -
Trade payables - - - -

As at 31st March 2022 Carrying Amount | upto 1 year 1- 2 years 2 - 5 years > b years
Liability

Borrowings 9,380,50 281314 3.004.00 5,001.35 -
Other Financial Liabilities 159.71 159,71

Trade payables 238.96 238.96 - = -

The following table details the company's expected maturity for its non-derivative financial

assets. The table has been drawn up

As at 31st March 2023 Carrying Amount | upto 1 year 1- 2 years 2 - b years > 5 years

Receivable under SCA 11,062.75 1,677.71 2.405.21 6,979.83 -
Cash and cash equivalents G80.50 6a0.50 - - ~
Others - - - -
As at 31st March 2022 Carrying Amount | upto 1 year 1- 2 years 2 - 5 years > 5 years

Receivable under SCA 1241743 3.653.45 3.634.36 12,667.13 -
Cash and cash equivalents 2394.13 239413 - 2 -
Others 32.35 3235 - -

d) Capital management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximize the shareholder
value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by total capiral plus ner debr.

As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Debts 4,851.77 9,456.11
Less: Cash and Bank Balances (1,608.91) (3,479.22)
(A) 3,248.86 5,976.89
Equity & Other equity (B) 6,793.18 6,523.53
Net Debt / Total Capital (A/B) (.48 0.92

I
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32 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 115 - " Service Concession Arrangements"

Description and classification of the arrangment
Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956, The Company is a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) incorporated on Tth July 2006 for execution of the
project “Improvement, Operation and Maintenance, Rehabilitation and Strengthening of existing 2-lane Road and widening to
4-lane Divided Highway of NH-25/26 in the state of Urar Pradesh on Build Operate Transfer (BOT)-Annuity Basis. The
company has entered inte a Concession Agreement with National Highways Authority of India, which specified 2 two and a
halt year of construction period and seventeen and a half years of Operation & Maintenance period. The project has achieved
the Commercial Operations Date on 3lst July 2010 for 45.22 Kms of the Project Highway, out of 49.305 Kms.The company
has already obrained Final Completion Certificate

Significant Terms of the arrangements
Receipt of Annuity:
Annuities shall be received semi-annually subject ro the provisions Article 6.1 of the Concession Agreement dated Sept 29, 2006.

Concession Fee and Other Fees:

As per Article 7.2 of the Concession Agreement, the company is liable to pay Concession Fee Re 1 every year during the
Concession Agreement.

Obligation of the Company
The company 15 under obligation to undertake, comply with and perform as per the Chaper-II1 "Obligations and Undertakings"
of the Concession Agreement.

Operation & Maintenance

The company is under obligation to carry out the routine and periodic maintenance of Project Highway as per Appendix-5 of
the Concession Agreement.

Details of any assets to be given or taken at the end of concession period

At the end of the Concession period the company shall deliver the actual or constructive possession of the Project Highway,
free and clear of all encumbrances.

Details of Termination
Concession Agreement can be terminated on account of default of the company or NHAI in the circumstances as specified
under chaper-VII of the Concession Agreement.

33 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 23 "Borrowing Costs"

As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Finance Cost 708.61 913.533
Less : Capitalized during the year - -
Finance Cost charged to Statement of P/L T08.61 913.53

34 Disclosures as per Ind AS 37 - "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets "
(a) Nature of provision:
The company is required to operate and maintain the project highway during the entire concession period and hand over the
project back to the Authority (NHAI) as per the maintenance standards prescribed in Concession agreement.

For this purpose, a regular maintenance along with periodic maintenances is required to be pertormed. Normally periodic
maintenance includes resurface of pavements, repairs of structures and other equipments and maintenance of service roads.

As per industry practice, the periodic maintenance is expected to oceur after 5-7 years. The maintenance cost / bituminous
overlay may vary based on the actual usage during maintenance period. Accordingly on the grounds of matching cost concept
and based on technical estimates, a provision for major maintenance expenses is reviewed and is provided for in the accounts
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34 Disclosures as per Ind AS 37 - "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets " (continued...)
(b) Movement in provisions:

As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balance 2,114.86 4,496.00
Additional provision 1,080.03 755.31
Utilised (715.47) (3,136.44)
Unused amounts reversed - -
Unwinding of discount and changes in discount cate -
Closing balance 3,119.42 2,114.86
(c) Contingent liabilities

As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Disputed Income Tax Dues for AY 2018-19* 19.94 19.94

* For the AY 2018-19, the Company was selected for scrutiny assessment vide notice dated September 23, 2019 under section
143(2) of the Act issued by the Assistant Commissioner of Income-tax (e-Verification). The NFAC, had concluded the
assessment proceedings and passed an assessment order dated April 7, 2021, under section 143(3) read with 144B of the Act
determining the total loss of the Appellant at a loss Rs. 8,02,02,602 as against the reumed loss of Rs. 8,40,75389. The
difference between the assessed loss and the returned loss 18 on account of addition of Rs. 38,72,787 made in the assessment
order relating to the amount received from the assessee from NHAI towards change in scope of work raising a demand of Rs.
9,97,243. Thereafter the authority has passed an order under section 270A of the Act dated February 2, 2022, levying a penalty
of 200% of the tax on under-reported income by disregarding the submissions made by the Assessee raising a total demand of
Rs. 19,94,486. Aggrieved by such order, the Assessee had filed an appeal on 23rd February 2022 with the office of Learned
Commissioner of Income-tax (Appeals) under the Faceless Appeals Scheme. The case is pending with CIT (Appeals) as on 31st
March 2023.

(d) Contingent liabilities / Contingent Assets in connection with the Arbitration claims with NHAI

The Company and NHAT have executed the Sertlement Agreement on 25th July 2022. The terms of the agreement is briefly
mentioned below:

1. The amount of final settlement has been arrived at NIL by mutual agreement between the parties.

2. NHAI will not raise any clims or damages against the Concessionaire of whatsoever narure under any cluse of Concession
Agreement and otherwise.

3. The Concessionaire will not raise any claims or damages against the Authority of whatsoever nature under clause of the
Concession Agreement and otherwise until the date of this agreement

4. Second renewal work (MM) is due five years from first renewal i.e. in 2022 and third renewal is due five years thereafter Le. in
2027.

Upon execution of the above agreement, all the Arbitration matters are closed.




7

un-._ﬂu..-._ _.._._.—Uu a.n_. (5] ..-HJ—..H ST
324 quanns ue afue ol oplace] GEE THE JuIU S| (auodu] U, 1sHa] WU EIAU] U0 ? / mww.
Amaqery xig, pazayacy
t "on ymod ur PIUOYLA SE NS0 phT FO0 10 + 1G9 [WOL, + HHOA AN saxty put 1sasajur asopaq sfunueg | paordws rdvy vo w01
ayqifue) = patordury pade)
tou ymod w pIubHLILL S SWRS|uehG cot RO0 SIS JAN] X} e Jgoid 1] oREIIgoI 1IN | 6
gy-puy sad
ST $3[L5 190 W awpap pue sead quaana) ; . SOOUICE] 10NN - S1955E
op aead Jsey woy padopdura pardes Ll wi 960 Juannd = pdes Sungiony RSN opR Jeiomn K 1N 8
[Funpom Jau s m asEAIdm O] angg
eal
o pua ap wogaq susuied solew|ec- ; At sapqedr,] apus], Adeaaay SISELDIN VPAI]) 39N Sl L
i jo p e B FELH 05 00el tti . Pl . 30w saqedied apesy,
o1 anp pasessaap sapqeded apen Ay
A[awn ISIAINPO 51 VORERT[VAT
sopg  womanp (55 pauawaidun ) ol
s Wens’ PEETOOTE WO 44,0601 VM 9gaT aqcraoay A ], adexaay SI[EQ NPT 19K] J3AOWTY $IqEAI3I FPEIL 0
luonrzieas sof Sutpuad smoow sapEs oy
= VN Vi AojuIAL] AFeIaay PlOs spoad 30 1507 onEa Jasowry Aojudan]| ¢
suaEIsur eo| jo Juawdedar asunape
K8 a0p J507) JERIUL O WOUNMPEY F
el JuEMa w23 -
nou St CTVIN A JUAWIINIS 04GET €00 b0'0 fimbsy spaployaomyg Bexaay snasayasd - 1330 3018 QGOIE 19N o fmbg vo wmayl ¢
pue  dxg oueunump ok p
o anp L] 1]
12a0 4. 10aan] w ggoad w asearaug
-suro| Jo Joawdedas asueape dq sjususieday 1955Y PasK] JO [0S TIO §50°T 4+ 1SUTNU]
1osdn 1 gonpa 1. JoannD Ut SSUNLEafe - b 810 pdoung 4+ suousfed| 4+ vonesnzoun: puw voneadacy + saxw|  oomr ddraso] s IgAT | €
oo m asexow w Aoerp Jolew op U] = 291095 1q3¢T | 1w 1gosd 1oy = 931A13s 1qap A0y sunuEy
sywawpasu jo jusivdas ugoyjo| ) : taki e : . i N
huswdedas 35uApE 03 anp PAdNPaT 1G] Yol S k'l OL0 Ajmiy SO Q2] o, onE AmMbHAI]| €
AR 5 sanp juan §1385Y JTran oL JUALNT)
o ususiedar asweapy o1 anp Apmepy VatGT 0Le oL SEr] 3 Y ATERN ey I
SDUEMEA 10) UOSEIY| ASUPYD % | TTOT WMEIW ISIE | ETOZ UIFEI ISTE JOTEUTUOUA(] SOJBILLN A OnEH|'ON'S

SONTY WIRUTULT ¢

(PaiEls BSEAIDUPO SSIUN 53 1 SIUNOWE [y

uoneunoju Aroreueidrg sapg) pue saog Sununodoy weagudig jo Aeunung

paunury sfespeoy mdiyey weden



Gayatri Lalitpur Roadways Limited
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information
{All amounts in ¥ Jakh unless otherwise stated)

36 Commitments

As at

3 March 2023 31 March 2022

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on
Capital Account not provided for

Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid
Other commitments

37 Related party disclosures

a) Name of related parties and nature of relationship
Names of the related parties

Gayatri Highways Limited

Gayatrl Projects Limited

India Infrastructure Fund

Shrewd Constructions Private Limited

Gayatri Jhanst Roadways Limited

Deep Corporation Private Limited

J- Brij Mohan Reddy

Bajrang Lal Gupta

Narayanan Gopalakrishnan (Resigned w.e.f. 22.02.2023)
Krishnamurthy Chaturvedi

Azad Singh Yadav, Company Secretary

U. Nagendra Varma, Chief Financial Officer

Rautan Singh, Chief Executive Officer

b) Transactions with related parties

Nature of relationship

Holding Company

Enterprises in which Key Management personnel
and/or their relatives have significant influence
Entity having significant influence

(more than 20% interest in the voting power till
21.02.2023)

Entity having significant influence

(more than 20% interest in the voting power from
22.02.2023)

Fellow Subsidiary

Gayatri Group Company

Director

Director

Director

Director

Key Managenal Personnel ("KMP")

Key Managerial Personnel ("EMP")

Key Managenal Personnel ("KMP")

For the year
ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Gayatri Projects Ltd

Operation & maintenance expenses 485.26 473.85

Major maintenance expenses T5.47 3,758.41
Deep Corporation Private Limited

Rent paid 14.53 14.53
Remuneration to Chief Financial Officer 15.60 12.60
Remuneration to Company Secretary 343 T.02
Remuneration to Chief Executive Officer 13.74 13.74
Sitiing; Fees

Krishnamurthy Chaturvedi 1.18 0.63

Bajrang Lal Gupta 1.18 0.65

o I
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37 Related party disclosures (continued...)
c) Balances receivable/{pavable)

As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Gayatri Highways Limited

Subscrnption of Equity (1,621.800 (1.621.80

Short-term Advance/Loan* 2510 548.77
India Infrastructure und

Subscription of Equity - (1,240.00)

Shotrt-term Advance - 346.70
Shrewd Construction Pvt. Ltd.

Subscription of Equity (1,240.00) -

Short-term Adwvance/Loan* 260.66 -
Gayatn Projects L.td

O & M and Other works 1.84 (295.95)
Gayatri Jhansi Roadways Limited

Short-term Advance/Loan* T84.90 784.90
Key Managerial Personnel ("KMP")

Chief Financial Officer (1.15) (0.76)

Company Secretary (0.25) (0.58)

Chief Executive Officer (1.83) (1.59

* Expected to be realised in next 12 months subject to availability of necessary funds.

38 Segment reporting

Based on the Company's business model and considering the internal financial reporting to the management, the Company
has identified only one reportable segment i.e. "construction, operations and maintenance of roads, highways and toll roads"

39 Comparatives

Previous year comparatives have been reclassified and regrouped wherever necessary, to confirm to current years’

presentation,
40 Events after the reporting period

There are no significant events after the reporting period that substantially affect the financial position of the compuany.
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